

# **Multi Account Manager**

**User Guide** 



# **Table of Contents**

Disclaimer1
Copyright Notice1
Table of Contents2
Overview4
Logon and initialization4
Accounts5
Allocation methods7
Lot Allocation7
Percent Allocation
Proportional by Balance Allocation9
Proportional by Equity Allocation9
Equity Percent Allocation
Allocation by Equal Risk11
Lot Multiplier Allocation
1. Multiplier Mode13
2. Fixed Mode13
3. Risk Mode14
4. Equity Mode14
Lot Multiplier with Volume Fix15
Percent Allocation by P/L
Proportional Allocation by P/L16
P/L Allocation using an Artificial Symbol16
Use of Trading Accounts (TA)17
Master Orders
Sub Orders19
Reports
Commissions20



## **Overview**

Multi Account Manager (MAM) is designed to provide the professional trader the essential integrated software tools to quickly and conveniently allocate and manage funds under master account arrangement in live trading conditions.

MAM supports 10 allocation methods.

Allocations by Volume:

- Lot Allocation
- Percent Allocation
- Proportional by Balance Allocation
- Proportional by Equity Allocation
- Equity Percent Allocation
- Allocation by Equal Risk
- Lot Multiplier Allocation
- Lot Multiplier with Volume Fix

#### Allocations by P/L:

- Percent Allocation by P/L
- Proportional Allocation by P/L

The MAM software can be used by the discretionary or automated systems traders. This Help manual will form the ongoing core knowledge base of the software system.

# Logon and initialization

When the MAM application is installed it is required to pass through initialization procedure in order to connect to the server. To access the server the license file is provided with the MAM Client installation package. This license file is loaded using File->Set License menu. After the license is loaded by the MAM Client application it will ask for valid master account password. The password is the same as for the MT4 Client Terminal.

And Personnel of Concession, Name	×
630209	
*****	
Enter	

When MAM Client application is loaded for the first time it is required to initialize the accounts before trading can be performed. To initialize the master account it is required to select one of the allocation methods.

Allocation Method	
<ul> <li>Lot Allocation</li> <li>Percent Allocation</li> <li>Proportional By Balance</li> <li>Proportional By Equity</li> <li>Equity Percent Allocation</li> <li>Allocation by Equal Risk</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Percent Allocation By P/L</li> <li>Proportional Allocation By P/L</li> <li>Lot Multiplier Allocation</li> <li>Lot Multiplier with Volume Fix</li> </ul>

To initialize the sub accounts it is required to select the sub accounts and then use Activate Selected menu item from the popup menu.

Multi Acc	ount Man	ager (Mast	ter A	ccount #63	0198)										X
<u>File</u> Langu	iage <u>A</u> bo	ut													
symbol	bid	ask		Accounts	Master Orders	Sub Orders	Reports Commissio	ons							
EURUSD	1,4110	1,4111		active	login	name	grou	n	lot	%	trades	balance	margin	equity	margin %
USDJPY	80,77	80,79		detive	630214	sub2		•	0	0	^	2 C20 04 5		2 635.02 €	
USDCHF	0,8884	0,8887			630233	Sub 0		oup_5	1	o	Copy Para	meters		2 688,26 €	
GBPUSD	1,6177	1,6180			630235	Sub_0		oup_5	1	20	Import Fro	m Excel		· · ·	0
AUDUSD	1,0531	1,0533			630238	Sub_2 Sub_5			0	20	1.1			76,78 €	0
USDCAD	0,9753	0,9756			630239	Sub_5			0	20	Export To I			0,00€	0
NZDUSD	0,7781	0,7784			630240	Sub_0			0	0	Activate Se	elected		1 035,01€	
GBPJPY	130,67	130,73			630240	Sub_7		· -	0	0	Deactivate	Selected		2 701,88 €	
GBPCHF	1,4372	1,4378			630242	Sub_0		· -	0	0	0	5851,87€	0.00 E	5 851,87 €	
EURGBP	0,8720	0,8722			630242	Sub_9			0	0	0	5 813,97 €		5 813,97 €	
EURCHF	1,2538	1,2540			630243	Sub_10			0	0	0	3 598,25 €		3 598,25 €	
EURJPY	113,97	114,00			630247	Sub_11 Sub_0		· -	0	0	0		0,00 €	<u> </u>	0
EURTRY	2,2485	2,2505			030247	Sub_0	subgi	oup_s	U	U	0	0,00 E	0,00 €	0,00 €	U
USDTRY	1,5930	1,5950													
TRYJPY	50,61	50,76	=												
EURAUD	1,3397	1,3399													
AUDJPY	85,06	85,08													
CHFJPY	90,89	90,92													
NZDCHF	0,6913	0,6919													
NZDJPY	62,85	62,89													
CADJPY	82,79	82,82													
ZARJPY	11,4760	11,5130													
USDNOK	5,5729	5,5779													
USDZAR	7,0266	7,0309			11				2,00	60,00		25 403	0,00€	25 369	
🗣 GLD	0	0							2,00	00,00		23 405	0,00 C	25 505	
SLV	0	0		Allocatio	on Method					Summary					
• OIL	0	0		Anocatio	an i i cuiva					Jannary					
∳ WTI	0	0		O Lot Al	location		Percent Alloca	tion By P/L		Sum I	ot: 0,00			Active:	
s GSO	0	0		0	nt Allocation		Proportional A			Sum percer			Active Ba	lance: 0,00	€
EURUSD5	1,41098	1,41113		O Propo	rtional By Balanc	e	O Lot Multiplier /			Balanc	e: 25 403,3	5€	Active E	Equity: 0,00	€
creditearn		0		<u> </u>	rtional By Equity		O Lot Multiplier v	vith Volume Fix			y: EUR		Active M	largin: 0,00	€
	0 8884	0.8889		<u> </u>	Percent Allocati tion by Equal Ris					Account	ts: 11				
				Alloca	uon by Equal Ris	ĸ									

After the accounts are initialized in MAM Client application the trading can be performed on the master account through the MT4 Client Terminal or MAM Client application (depends on broker permissions).

## Accounts

The Accounts tab of the MAM Client application contains information about the managed accounts (sub accounts) and MAM allocation parameters. The sub accounts table contains all available sub accounts and their properties. The properties can be changed right on the table. The next parameters of the sub accounts can be changed:

Active – this parameter is used to enable the sub account for trading. The MAM allocates trades from the master account to the Active sub accounts only. The Active property of the sub account is used for opening trades only. This parameter is ignored when trades are closed because when closing trades MAM already knows what sub accounts the trade was allocated to. So the number of Active sub accounts can be changed while positions are opened on the master account.

Lot – this parameter is used by the "Lot Allocation", "Lot Multiplier Allocation" and "Lot Multiplier with Volume Fix" methods. This parameter defines the number of lots to allocate to the sub account.

% (percent) – this parameter is used by the "Percent Allocation" and "Equity Percent Allocation" and "Percent Allocation by P/L" methods. This parameter defines the percentage amount of the master trade volume (or P/L) which will be allocated to the sub account.

Mode – this parameter is used by Lot Multiplier and Lot Multiplier with Volume Fix allocation methods. It can be set to one of the following values: Multiplier, Fixed, Risk, Equity. For more details about different modes please refer to the Lot Multiplier Allocation method section.

It is possible to copy the same value of the parameter to more than one sub account. For this one needs to select the sub accounts to copy the parameter to. Then right click on the parameter which needs to be copied and in the popup menu select Copy Parameters option.

Allocation parameters can be exported and imported from Excel. To export sub accounts to Excel select the sub accounts that need to be exported and in the popup menu select Export to Excel option. The Excel spreadsheet can be modified and saved.

To Import sub accounts' parameters from Excel in the popup menu select Import from Excel option. The parameters of the sub accounts listed in the Excel spreadsheet will be imported and applied for the sub accounts.

The Summary tab shows the most essential parameters for allocation.



Sum Lot – the sum of Lot parameter for the active sub accounts.

Sum percent – the sum of percent parameter for the active sub accounts (this parameter should be 100%).

Balance – total balance of all the sub accounts (both active and inactive).

Currency – the deposit currency of the master account.

Accounts – total number of sub accounts.

Active – number of active sub accounts.

Active Balance – current balance of the master account (should be equal to the sum of balances of active sub accounts<sup>1</sup>).

Active Equity – current equity of the master account.

Active Margin – current margin of the master account.

# **Allocation methods**

At the heart of MAM is the ability for the trader or Managed Funds Manager to allocate the trades by individual sub account lots, percentage or proportional allocation to suit the overall structure to their trading or fund management style. Alongside the allocation method is the allocation parameters for quick and efficient implementation.

# **Lot Allocation**

This allocation method is used to divide volume of the master trade to the sub accounts according to the set Lot parameter of the sub accounts. Lot Allocation allows trading with variable lot sizes on the master account. The allocation to the sub accounts will be proportional to the set lot sizes provided for each of them.



When using Lot Allocation make sure to set Lot parameter of at least one of the active sub accounts greater than zero.

General formula of Lot Allocation method is this:

$$Vol_i = \frac{Lot_i}{\sum Lot} \cdot MVol$$

Where:

*MV*ol – volume of the master trade

*Lot*<sub>*i*</sub> – *Lot parameter of the i*<sup>th</sup> *sub account* 

 $\sum$  Lot – sum of Lot parameters of all active sub accounts

*Voli* – *volume of the sub trade* 

For example, consider there are two active sub accounts with Lot parameter set as 2 and 3 lots respectively.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> To fix the balance of the master account it is required to Activate/Deactivate one of the sub accounts.

<b>v</b>	630240	Sub_7	subgroup_5	2	0	0	1035,01€ 0,00€	1035,01€0
✓	630241	Sub_8	subgroup_5	3	0	0	2 701,88 € 0,00 €	2 701,88 € 0

If master account opens 10 lots then the volume of the sub orders is calculated as follows:

Sub Orders:													
order	login	symbol	comment	command	volume	open time	open price	sl	tp	commiss	agent	swap	profit
198912	630240	USDJPY		buy	4	5/16/2011 8:09:29	80,78	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-34,89€
198912	630241	USDJPY		buy	6	5/16/2011 8:09:29	80,78	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-52,33€

The volume of the first sub account is 2/5 \* 10 = 4 lots

The volume of the second sub account is **3/5** \* **10** = **6** lots

## **Percent Allocation**

This allocation method is used to divide volume of the master trade to the sub accounts according to the set Percent (%) parameter of the sub accounts. The allocation to the sub accounts will be calculated as a percentage of the master trade volume.



When using Percent Allocation the sum of Percent (%) parameter of all the active sub accounts must be 100%.

General formula of Percent Allocation method is this:

$$Vol_i = \frac{Pcnt_i}{100\%} MVo$$

Where:

MVol - volume of the master trade

 $Pcnt_i$  – Percent(%) parameter of the *i*<sup>th</sup> sub account

*Voli – volume of the sub trade* 

For example, consider there are two active sub accounts with Lot parameter set as 30% and 70% respectively.

1	630240	Sub_7	subgroup_5	0	30	0	10 965,27 : 0,00 €	10 965,27 0
~	630241	Sub_8	subgroup_5	0	70	0	12 597,27 0,00 €	12 597,27 0

If master account opens 10 lots then the volume of the sub orders is calculated as follows:

Sub Or	ders:											
order	login	symbol	comment command	volume	open time	open price	sl	tp	commiss	agent	swap	profit
198913	630240	USDJPY	buy	3	5/16/2011 8:38:07	80,78	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-52,31€
198913	630241	USDJPY	buy	7	5/16/2011 8:38:07	80,78	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-122,04

The volume of the first sub account is 30%/100% \* 10 = 3 lots

The volume of the second sub account is 70%/100% \* 10 = 7 lots

## **Proportional by Balance Allocation**

This allocation method is calculating proportion of the master trade volume according to the balances of the sub accounts. This method doesn't require additional settings. The fraction of the master trade volume is calculated automatically.

General formula of Proportional by Balance Allocation method is this:

$$Vol_i = \frac{Balance_i}{\sum Balance} \cdot MVol$$

Where:

*MV*ol – volume of the master trade

Balance - Balance of the *i*<sup>th</sup> sub account

 $\sum$  Balance – sum of balances of all active sub accounts

*Voli* – *volume of the sub trade* 

For example, consider there are two active sub accounts with balances of 10,000 and 6,000 respectively.

<b>v</b>	630240	Sub_7	subgroup_5	0	0	0	10 000,00 + 0,00 €	10 000,00 0
<b>v</b>	630241	Sub_8	subgroup_5	0	0	0	6 000,00 € 0,00 €	6 000,00 € 0

If master account opens 10 lots then the volume of the sub orders is calculated as follows:

Sub Or	ders:											
order	login	symbol	comment comm	and volume	open time	open price	sl	tp	commiss	agent	swap	profit
198914	630240	USDJPY	buy	6.3	5/16/2011 9:34:38	80.8	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-109,90
198914	630241	USDJPY	buy	3.7	5/16/2011 9:34:38	80.8	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-64,54€

The volume of the first sub account is 6,000/16,000 \* 10 = 3.75 lots

The volume of the second sub account is 10,000/16,000 \* 10 = 6.25 lots

The volume of the sub accounts is rounded according to the lot step. For example, if lot step is 0.1 lot then the sub accounts will be allocated **6.3 and 3.7 lots** respectively.

## **Proportional by Equity Allocation**

This allocation method is similar to the Proportional by Balance in a way that proportion is calculated automatically. The difference is that Equity is used instead of Balance. This method doesn't require additional settings. The fraction of the master trade volume is calculated automatically.

General formula of Proportional by Equity Allocation method is this:

$$Vol_i = \frac{Equity_i}{\sum Equity} \cdot MVol$$

Where:

*MV*ol – volume of the master trade

Equity – Equity of the *i*<sup>th</sup> sub account

 $\sum$  Equity – sum of equities of all active sub accounts

*Voli* – *volume of the sub trade* 

# **Equity Percent Allocation**

Equity Percentage allocation is used when the user requires allocating to sub accounts on a percentage basis of each individual sub account. The idea of this allocation method is to make it possible to define the risk for each individual sub account. For example, if the risk percentage of the sub account is set to 30% it means that 30% of the sub account equity will be traded at any time. The volume traded on the master account is calculated as a sum of volumes of the sub accounts.

This allocation method is using Percent (%) parameter of the sub accounts to define the percentage of the sub account equity which will be traded in every trade.

When using Equity Percent Allocation the volume of the master trade is changed to reflect the sum of volumes of the sub trades. No matter what volume is put in the initial trade request the volume of the opened trade will be different.

General formula of Equity Percent Allocation method is this:

$$\frac{Vol}{i} = \frac{Pcnt_i \cdot Leverage}{100\% \cdot cs \cdot conv} \cdot Equity$$

i

$$MV$$
ol =  $\sum V$ oli

Where:

MVol – volume of the master trade

Equity – Equity of the *i*<sup>th</sup> sub account

Voli – volume of the sub trade

 $\sum Vol_i$  – sum of volumes of the sub orders

*Pcnt*<sub>i</sub> – *Percent(%)* parameter of the *i*<sup>th</sup> sub account

Leverage – leverage of the sub account

cs – Contract Size for the symbol

*conv* – *conversion rate for the symbol* 

For example, consider there are two active sub accounts with Percent(%) parameter set to 10% and 20% respectively.

<b>v</b>	630240	Sub_7	subgroup_5	0	10	0	10 000,00 + 0,00 €	10 000,00 0
<b>V</b>	630241	Sub_8	subgroup_5	0	20	0	6 000,00 € 0,00 €	6 000,00 € 0

Then the sub orders will be opened with the volumes as follows

Sub Or	Sub Orders:												
order	login	symbol	comment	command	volume	open time	open price	sl	tp	commiss	agent	swap	profit
198915	630240	USDJPY		buy	1,4	16.05.2011 22:11	80,74	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-36,66€
198916	630241	USDJPY		buy	1,7	16.05.2011 22:11	80,74	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-44,51€

And the master trade volume will be calculated as the sum of sub trade volumes

Master	Orders:												
order	login	symbol	comment	command	volume	open time	open price	sl	tp	commiss	agent	swap	profit
1989158	630198	USDJPY		buy	3,1	16.05.2011 22:11:	80,74	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-54,10

## **Allocation by Equal Risk**

Allocation by Equal Risk is introduced to address the problem of margin control on the sub accounts. Sometimes the sub accounts are stopped out because of the low margin level. No other allocation method is taking into consideration the margin level of the individual sub accounts. But with the Allocation by Equal Risk it is possible to set minimal Margin % level for each of the sub accounts. If the minimal Margin % limit is reached there will be no allocation to such sub account.

$$V_{i} = E_{E^{m}}^{s_{i}} \sum_{j=1}^{K} V^{m} - \sum_{j=1}^{N} V^{s}$$

Where:

*N* - Number of trades allocated to the *i*<sup>th</sup> sub account

*K* - Number of trades allocated to the master account

*V* - Number of lots to be allocated to *i*<sup>th</sup> subaccount,

 $V_i^s$  - Number of lots already allocated to  $i^{th}$  subaccount on  $j^{th}$  trade

 $V_i^m$  - Number of lots already allocated to master account on  $j^{th}$  trade

- $E_i^s$  Equity of  $i^{th}$  subaccount,
- *E<sup>m</sup>* Equity of the master account

For example, consider there are two active sub accounts with one opened trade on the master account. This trade is allocated to the sub accounts and current margin level of the sub accounts is significantly different (1008.16% on the first sub account and 498.79% on the second sub account).

active	7	login	name	group	lot	%	trades	balance	margin	equity	margin %
1		630240	Sub_7	subgroup_5	0	100	1	9 940,65 €	986,02€	9 940,65 €	1008,16
1		630241	Sub_8	subgroup_5	0	100	1	5 972,07 €	1 197,31€	5 972,07 €	498,79

If we leave it as that then there is a possibility that one of the sub accounts can reach margin call level earlier. Now if we switch to the Allocation by Equal Risk and open another position on the master account this volume will be redistributed to the sub accounts so that to make their Margin % as much the same as possible. So for example, we open 10 lots on the master account.

Master (	Orders:												
order	login	symbol	comment	command	volume	open time	open price	sl	tp	commissio	agent	swap	profit
1989158	630198	USDJPY		buy	3,1	16.05.2011 22:11:26	80,74	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	27,04€
1989164	630198	USDJPY		buy	10	16.05.2011 22:32:47	80,74	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	87,25€

On the sub accounts we can see this distribution of volumes

Sub Ord	ers:												
order	login	symbol	comment	command	volume	open time	open price	sl	tp	commissio	agent	swap	profit
1989165	630240	USDJPY		buy	6,8	16.05.2011 22:32:47	80,74	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	59,35€
1989166	630241	USDJPY		buy	3,2	16.05.2011 22:32:47	80,74	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	27,93€

And now we can see that the new margin % of the sub accounts is almost the same.

active	∇ login	name	group	lot	%	trades	balance	margin	equity	margin %
1	630240	Sub_7	subgroup_5	0	100	2	9 940,65 €	5 777,28 €	9 869,09 €	170,83
~	630241	Sub_8	subgroup_5	0	100	2	5 972,07€	3 452,02 €	5 929,32 €	171,76

This is still more than 100% (which is set by the Percent(%) parameter). If the margin % was less than 100 then the trade could not be opened on the sub account thus preventing it from the risk of margin call.

# **Lot Multiplier Allocation**

This allocation method is used to copy trades from the master account to the sub accounts. This is simple implementation of the trade copier.

When using the Lot Multiplier Allocation method the volume of the master trade will always be different from the sum of volumes of the sub trades. To overcome this problem the Trading Account (TA) can be used. Please refer to the Use of Trading Accounts section for more details.

There are several Modes which work with the Lot Multiplier allocation and can be selected for each individual sub account separately. These modes allow different kinds of calculations of the sub trade volumes. They are described below.

#### 1. Multiplier Mode

When Multiplier mode is selected for the sub account then Lot parameter of the sub account is used as a multiplier factor for the master trade. The volume of the master trade remains unchanged.

General formula of Lot Multiplier Allocation method with Multiplier mode is this:

$$Vol_i = Lot_i \cdot MVol$$

Where:

*MV*ol – volume of the initial master trade request

 $Lot_i$  – Lot paremter of the *i*<sup>th</sup> sub account

*Voli – volume of the sub trade* 

For example, consider there are two active sub accounts with set Lot paremter of 1.3 and 2.5 respectively.

active	login	name	group	lot	%	mode	trades	balance margi	n equity	margin <sup>o</sup>
V	630241	653383	subgroup_5	1.3	0	Multiplier	0	9 763 280 0,00 €	9 767 58	8 0
1	630242	653431	subgroup_5	2.5	0	Multiplier	0	9 768 963 0,00 €	9 770 29	:0

If master account opens 1 lot then the volume of the sub orders is calculated as follows:

Sub Ord	ers:												
order	login	symbol	comment	command	volume	open time	open price	sl	tp	commissio	agent	swap	profit
1989180	630240	USDJPY		buy	1,3	16.05.2011 23:09:05	80,76	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-22,72€
1989181	630241	USDJPY		buy	2,5	16.05.2011 23:09:05	80,76	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-43,68€

The volume of the first sub account is **1.3** \* **1** = **1.3** lots

The volume of the second sub account is **2.5** \* **1** = **2.5** lots

The master trade volume remains 1 lot.

#### 2. Fixed Mode

When Fixed mode is selected for the sub account then the volume of the sub trade will be defined by the Lot parameter of the sub account regardless of the lot size of the master trade. So, for example, if Lot parameter of the sub account is set to 1.5 then the sub trade will be 1.5 lots regardless of how many lots the master account has opened.

#### 3. Risk Mode

If Risk mode is selected for the sub account then the volume of the sub trade will be calculated as a proportion of the sub account's equity to the master account equity. The Percent (%) parameter of the sub account will be used for the calculations.

$$Vol_s = \frac{Eq_s}{Eq_m} Pcnt_s \quad \cdot Vol_m$$

Where:

- $Vol_m$  volume of the initial master trade request
- *Pcnts Percent (%) paremter of the sub account*

*Vols* – *volume of the sub trade* 

 $Eq_s$  – equity of the sub account

 $Eq_m$  – equity of the master account

For example the Equity of the master account is \$300,000. Equity of the sub account 630241 is \$50,000. Equity of the sub account 630242 is \$100,000. The equity of the master account is \$300,000 (with the Lot Multiplier allocation the master equity may be different from the sum of equities of the sub accounts). The Percent parameter of the sub account 630241 is 100%. The percent parameter of the sub account 630242 is 30%.

active	login /	name	group	lot	%	mode	trades	balance	margin	equity	margin (
<b>v</b>	630241	653383	subgroup_5	0	100	Risk	0	50 000,00	0,00€	50 000,00	0
<b>V</b>	630242	653431	subgroup_5	0	30	Risk	0	100 000,0	0,00€	100 000,0	0

If master account opens 1 lot then the volume of the sub orders is calculated as follows:

order	login	symbol	comment	command	volume	open time	open price	sl	tp	commiss	agent	swap	profit
486735	630241	EURUSD		buy	0.17	01.09.2012 22:00	1.258	0	0	-1,35€	0,00€	0,00€	-4,06€
486735	630242	EURUSD		buy	0.1	01.09.2012 22:00	1.258	0	0	-0,80€	0,00€	0,00€	-2,39€

The volume of the sub account 630241 is 50,000/300,000\*1\*1 = 0.17 lots

The volume of the sub account 630242 is 100,000/300,000\*0.3\*1 = 0.1 lots

#### 4. Equity Mode

If Equity mode is selected for the sub account then the volume of the sub trade will be calculated as a percentage of the sub account's equity.

$$Vol_s = Eq_s \cdot Pcnt_s$$

Where:

*Pcnts* – *Percent (%) paremter of the sub account* 

*Vols* – *volume of the sub trade* 

 $Eq_s$  – equity of the sub account

# Lot Multiplier with Volume Fix

This allocation method is used to copy trades from the master account to the sub accounts. This allocation is much similar to the Lot Multiplier allocation. All the same Modes are applied to this allocation method as in the Lot Multiplier allocation. But the difference with the Lot Multiplier allocation is in that the volume of the master trade is changed to reflect the sum of volumes of the sub accounts.

When using the Lot Multiplier with Volume Fix method the volume of the master trade will be different from the initial volume of the trade request. The volume of the master trade will be equal to the sum of volumes of the sub trades.

The formula of Lot Multiplier with Volume Fix method is as follows:

$$Vol_{i} = Lot_{i} \cdot MVol$$
$$MVol^{t} = \sum Vol_{i}$$

Where:

*MV*ol – volume of the initial master trade request

*MV*ol<sup>*i*</sup> – volume of the master trade

 $Lot_i$  – Lot paremter of the *i*<sup>th</sup> sub account

*Voli* – *volume of the sub trade* 

### Percent Allocation by P/L

This is one of the two allocation methods by profit/loss. The allocation by P/L is made without opening positions on the sub accounts. But when the master position is closed the allocation to the sub accounts is made with deposit/withdrawal transaction. The allocation methods by P/L are more precise in general. Their precision is always one cent regardless of the minimal volume settings. These methods

are also working differently with the allocation parameters. The allocation parameters are read and allocations are calculated when the trade is closed on the master account.

Percent Allocation by P/L is used when the user requires allocation to the sub accounts on a percentage basis according to the set Percent(%) parameter similar to the Percent Allocation method.



Switching from P/L based allocation method to the volume based allocation method is restricted if there are opened trades on the master account.

# **Proportional Allocation by P/L**

The allocation method is similar to the Percent Allocation by P/L in a way that no trades are opened on the sub accounts. The deposit/withdrawal is made to the sub accounts when master trade is closed.

Proportional Allocation by P/L is used when the user requires allocating to sub accounts proportionally to their balances (see Proportional by Balance Allocation for more details).

# P/L Allocation using an Artificial Symbol

Depending on the server settings the P/L Allocation method can be setup to allocate using Deposits/Withdrawals to the sub accounts or open trades on the artificial symbol. Using the artificial symbol is preferable because this allows similar logic to the other allocation methods. For example, if Proportional Allocation by P/L with the artificial symbol is used the proportions are calculated when the trade is opened as opposed to using the Deposits/Withdrawals where the proportions are calculated when the master trade is closed. In addition, when the artificial symbol is used it is possible to remove the sub accounts from the MAM by closing their trades, which again is not possible to do with the Deposits/Withdrawals type of P/L allocation.

When the trade is opened on the master account the sub orders are also opened on the sub accounts.

Deal	Login	Time	Туре	Symbol	Volu	Price	Commission	Profit	Comment
3866551	630198	2012.02.15 00:07	buy	eurusd	1.00	1.3127	-114.30	-7.62	
3866552	630199	2012.02.15 00:07	buy	creditearn	0.32	0.3297716	-3.20	0.00	from master trade #3866551
3866553	630200	2012.02.15 00:07	buy	creditearn	0.23	0.2388814	-2.30	0.00	from master trade #3866551
3866554	630205	2012.02.15 00:07	buy	creditearn	0.43	0.431347	0.00	0.00	from master trade #3866551

The master order is displayed in the Comment field of the sub orders. The floating P/L of the sub orders is always zero (because the price of the artificial symbol is not updating). The Open Price of the sub orders contains the proportion of P/L of the master trade which will be allocated to the sub account upon closing of the master trade. The volume of the sub orders is rounded (because it cannot be less than 0.01 lot). But it is not taking part in calculation of the P/L, it is just to hide real volume of the master trade.

When the master trade is closed the sub orders are closed as well. The master trade P/L, Swap and Commission is allocated to the sub accounts through the sub orders.

3866551	630198	EURUSD			buy	1 15.02	.2012 0	1.3127 15.02.2012	00:13:	1.3226	0	0 -114	,30€ 0,0	00€ 0,00	€ 748,53
order	login	symbol	comment	command	volume	open time	open price	close time	close price	sl tp		commission	agent	swap	profit
3866554	630205	creditearn	from master 1	buy	0.43	15.02.2012 00:07:56	0.431346991	15.02.2012 00:13:18	0.431346991	0	0	-49,31€	0,00€	0,00€	322,88
3866553	630200	creditearn	from master 1	buy	0.23	15.02.2012 00:07:56	0.238881421	15.02.2012 00:13:18	0.238881421	0	0	-27,30€	0,00€	0,00€	178,81
3866552	630199	creditearn	from master 1	buy	0.32	15.02.2012 00:07:56	0.329771587	15.02.2012 00:13:18	0.329771587	0	0	-37,69€	0,00€	0,00€	246,84
3					0.98							-\$114.30	0.00	0.00	\$748.53

# **Use of Trading Accounts (TA)**

There are several allocation methods that change initial volume of the trade request. Equity Percent Allocation and Lot Multiplier with Volume Fix allocation methods may change volume of the master trades. Thus the resulted trade which is opened on the master account has different volume than it was initially sent by the trader. This may be a problem when your trading strategy is relying on the information about the volumes of the previous trades. To resolve this problem it is possible to use a separate Trading Account (TA) for trading. The TA can be used when it is required to keep trading volume separately from allocated volume. Each TA is bound to the master account. Every trade which is opened or closed on the TA is copied to the master account. But the volume of the trade which is opened on the master account may be different from the volume of the trade opened on the TA.

## **Master Orders**

This tab displays the master orders and the sub orders. When master order is selected the list of sub orders is shown for it.

	age <u>A</u> bo	out															
symbol	bid	ask	-	Accounts	Master (	Orders Sub (	Orders Rep	orts Commiss	ions								
EURUSD	1,4162	1,4163		Master	Orders:												
USDJPY	80,78	80,80		order	login	symbol	comment	comman	d volum	e open time	open price	sl	tp	commiss	io agent	swap	profit
USDCHF	0,8840	0,8843		1989196	630198	EURUSD		buy	1	16.05.2011 23:42:1	9 1,4171	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-63,55
GBPUSD	1,6196	1,6199		1989223	630198	NZDUSD		buy	1	16.05.2011 23:42:4	6 0,781	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-28,25
AUDUSD	1,0564	1,0566		1989229		USDCAD		buy	1,5	16.05.2011 23:42:5		0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-76,07
USDCAD	0,9747	0,9750		1989208		USDCHF		buy	0.5	16.05.2011 23:42:3		0	0	0.00€	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€
NZDUSD	0,7806	0,7809		1989202		USDJPY		sell	0,5	16.05.2011 23:42:2		0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-17,47
GBPJPY	130,83	130,89		1989214		USDJPY		sell	2	16.05.2011 23:42:3		0	0	0,00 €	0,00 €	0,00 €	-69,91
GBPCHF	1,4318	1,4324															
EURGBP	0,8743	0,8745															
EURCHF	1,2521	1,2523															
EURJPY	114,41	114,44	E														
EURTRY	2,2546	2,2566															
a. continu		2,2000															
USDTRY	1,5913	1,5933															
			-	6					65					0.00.€	0.004	E 0.00 E	-255
USDTRY	1,5913	1,5933		6					6,5					0,00€	0,00	E 0,00€	-255
USDTRY TRYJPY	1,5913 50,67	1,5933 50,82		6 Sub Ord	ers:				6,5					0,00€	0,00	€ 0,00 €	-255
<ul> <li>USDTRY</li> <li>TRYJPY</li> <li>EURAUD</li> </ul>	1,5913 50,67 1,3405	1,5933 50,82 1,3407			ers: login	symbol	comment	command	6,5 volume	open time o	pen price	sl	tp	0,00 € commissio		E 0,00€ swap	-255 profit
USDTRY TRYJPY EURAUD AUDJPY	1,5913 50,67 1,3405 85,32	1,5933 50,82 1,3407 85,35		Sub Ord	login	USDJPY	comment	sell	volume 0,1	16.05.2011 23:42:39 8	0,76	0	<b>tp</b> 0	commissio 0,00 €			<b>profit</b> -3,50 €
USDTRY TRYJPY EURAUD AUDJPY CHFJPY	1,5913 50,67 1,3405 85,32 91,35	1,5933 50,82 1,3407 85,35 91,37		Sub Ord order	<b>login</b> 630214		comment	sell	volume	-	0,76			commissio	agent	swap	profit -3,50 € -3,50 €
<ul> <li>USDTRY</li> <li>TRYJPY</li> <li>EURAUD</li> <li>AUDJPY</li> <li>CHFJPY</li> <li>NZDCHF</li> </ul>	1,5913 50,67 1,3405 85,32 91,35 0,6900	1,5933 50,82 1,3407 85,35 91,37 0,6907		Sub Ord order 1989215 1989216 1989217	login 630214 630233 630235	USDJPY	comment	sell sell sell	volume 0,1 0,1 0,1	16.05.2011 23:42:39 8	0,76 0,76	0 0 0	0 0 0 0	commissio 0,00 €	agent 0,00 €	swap 0,00€	profit -3,50 € -3,50 € -3,50 €
USDTRY TRYJPY EURAUD AUDJPY CHFJPY NZDCHF NZDJPY	1,5913 50,67 1,3405 85,32 91,35 0,6900 63,05	1,5933 50,82 1,3407 85,35 91,37 0,6907 63,11		Sub Ord order 1989215 1989216	login 630214 630233 630235	USDJPY USDJPY	comment	sell sell sell sell	volume 0,1 0,1 0,1 0,6	16.05.2011 23:42:39 8 16.05.2011 23:42:39 8	0,76 0,76 0,76	0	0	commissio 0,00 € 0,00 €	agent 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 €	swap 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 €	profit -3,50 € -3,50 € -3,50 € -20,97 €
	1,5913 50,67 1,3405 85,32 91,35 0,6900 63,05 82,84	1,5933 50,82 1,3407 85,35 91,37 0,6907 63,11 82,87		Sub Ord order 1989215 1989216 1989217	login 630214 630233 630235 630240	USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY	comment	sell sell sell sell	volume 0,1 0,1 0,1	16.05.2011 23:42:39 8 16.05.2011 23:42:39 8 16.05.2011 23:42:39 8	0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76	0 0 0	0 0 0 0	commissio 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 €	agent 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 €	swap 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 €	profit -3,50 € -3,50 €
USDTRY U	1,5913 50,67 1,3405 85,32 91,35 0,6900 63,05 82,84 11,5150	1,5933 50,82 1,3407 85,35 91,37 0,6907 63,11 82,87 11,5600		Sub Ord order 1989215 1989216 1989217 1989218	login 630214 630233 630235 630240 630241	USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY	comment	sell sell sell sell	volume 0,1 0,1 0,1 0,6	16.05.2011 23:42:39 80 16.05.2011 23:42:39 80 16.05.2011 23:42:39 80 16.05.2011 23:42:39 80	0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	commissio           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €	agent 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 €	swap 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 €	profit -3,50 € -3,50 € -3,50 € -20,97 €
USDTRY TRYJPY EURAUD AUDJPY CHFJPY NZDCHF NZDJPY CAJJPY ZARJPY USDNOK	1,5913 50,67 1,3405 85,32 91,35 0,6900 63,05 82,84 11,5150 5,5714	1,5933 50,82 1,3407 85,35 91,37 0,6907 63,11 82,87 11,5600 5,5764		Sub Ord order 1989215 1989216 1989217 1989218 1989219	login 630214 630233 630235 630240 630241 630242	USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY	comment	sell sell sell sell	volume 0,1 0,1 0,1 0,6 0,3	16.05.2011 23:42:39         80           16.05.2011 23:42:39         80           16.05.2011 23:42:39         80           16.05.2011 23:42:39         81           16.05.2011 23:42:39         81           16.05.2011 23:42:39         81	0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76	0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0	commissio           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €	agent 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 €	swap 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 €	profit -3,50 € -3,50 € -3,50 € -20,97 € -10,49 €
USDTRY TRYJPY EURAUD AUDJPY CHFJPY NZDCHF NZDJPY CAJJPY ZARJPY USDNOK USDZAR	1,5913 50,67 1,3405 85,32 91,35 0,6900 63,05 82,84 11,5150 5,5714 7,0005	1,5933 50,82 1,3407 85,35 91,37 0,6907 63,11 82,87 11,5600 5,5764 7,0070		Sub Ord order 1989215 1989216 1989217 1989218 1989219 1989220	login 630214 630233 630235 630240 630241 630242 630243	USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY	comment	sell sell sell sell sell	volume 0,1 0,1 0,1 0,6 0,3 0,3	16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8	0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76	0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0	commissio           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €	agent 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 €	swap 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 €	profit -3,50 € -3,50 € -3,50 € -20,97 € -10,49 € -10,49 €
USDTRY TRYJPY EURAUD LURAUD AUDJPY CHFJPY CHFJPY NZDCHF NZDJPY CADJPY CADJPY USDNOK USDZAR GLD	1,5913 50,67 1,3405 85,32 91,35 0,6900 63,05 82,84 11,5150 5,5714 7,0005 0	1,5933 50,82 1,3407 85,35 91,37 0,6907 63,11 82,87 11,5600 5,5764 7,0070 0		Sub Ord order 1989215 1989216 1989217 1989217 1989219 1989220 1989221	login 630214 630233 630235 630240 630241 630242 630243	USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY	comment	sell sell sell sell sell sell	volume 0,1 0,1 0,1 0,6 0,3 0,3 0,3 0,3	16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8           16.05.2011 23:42:39         8	0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76 0,76	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	commissio           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €	agent 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 € 0,00 €	swap           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €           0,00 €	profit -3,50 € -3,50 € -3,50 € -3,50 € -10,49 € -10,49 € -10,49 €

Each individual sub order can be closed by the MAM Client application<sup>2</sup>. Whenever the sub order is closed the master order is closed partially by the volume of the closed sub order. To close the sub order it is required to double click on it. The Order Execution window will be opened. Then press Close Order button.

	lage <u>A</u> bo																
symbol	bid	ask	-	Accounts	Master (	Orders Sub	Orders Rep	orts Commiss	ions								
EURUSD	1,4163	1,4164		Master 0	orders:												
USDJPY	80,77	80,79		order	login	symbol	comment	t comman	d volur	ne open time	open price	sl	tp	commissio	agent	swap	profit
USDCHF	0,8839	0,8842	1	1989196	630198	EURUSD		buy	1	16.05.2011 23:42:19	1,4171	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-56,49
GBPUSD	1,6197	1,6200		1989223	630198	NZDUSD		buy	1	16.05.2011 23:42:46	0,781	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-63,54
AUDUSD	1,0563	1,0565	1	1989229	630198	USDCAD		buy	1,5	16.05.2011 23:42:54	0,9754	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-43,46
USDCAD	0,9750	0,9753	1	1989208	630198	USDCHF		buy	0,5	16.05.2011 23:42:34	0,884	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-3,99 €
NZDUSD	0,7801	0,7804	1	1989202	630198	USDJPY		sell	0,5	Order Execution	-		100	X	100€	0.00€	-13,11
GBPJPY	130,81	130,87		1989214	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	USDJPY	1	sell	2	Chack Execution	-	and the second distance of the second distanc	100	0	00€	0.00€	-52,43
GBPCHF	1,4318	1,4324						State.		in the second							
EURGBP	0,8743	0,8745								Lots: 0.6	\$		Slippage: 0	÷			
EURCHF	1,2521	1,2523									US Dollar vs Jap	V		•			
EURJPY	114,41	114,44	E							Symbol: USDJPY - I	US Dollar VsJap	ianese rien		•			
EURTRY	2,2548	2,2568								Comment:							
USDTRY	1,5913	1,5933															
TRYJPY	50,67	50,82		6					6,5	Stop Loss: 0	: :	Take Profit:	0	:	0.00 \$	0,00€	-233
EURAUD	1,3407	1,3411		U					0,5				-		0,000	0,00 €	255
AUDJPY	85,30	85,32		Sub Orde	ers:					Sell			Buy				
CHEJPY	91,34	91,37		order	login	symbol	comment	command	volume			-			ent	swap	profit
	0,6898	0,6904	1	1989215	630214	USDJPY		sell	0,1		Close order	#1989218			D€	0,00€	-2,62€
NZDCHF		63,07		1989216	630233	USDJPY		sell	0,1	Pending Order					D€	0,00€	-2,62€
NZDCHF NZDJPY	63,02		1	1989217	630235	USDJPY		sell	0,1						D€	0,00€	-2,62€
	63,02 82,81	82,84		LJOJEL/	000200					Type: BUY LIMIT	-	At Price:			36	0,00€	-15,73€
NZDJPY CADJPY	Contraction of the Contraction	82,84 11,5590		1989218		USDJPY		sell	0,6	Type. DOT LIMIT					15		
NZDJPY	82,81				630240	USDJPY USDJPY		sell sell	0,6 0,3	Type. Joor climit			Set Minimum F	Price	D€	0,00€	-7,86 €
<ul> <li>NZDJPY</li> <li>CADJPY</li> <li>ZARJPY</li> </ul>	82,81 11,5150	11,5590	1	1989218	630240 630241				100.00	Type. DOT LIMIT		2	Set Minimum F	Price	D€	0,00 € 0,00 €	-7,86 € -7,86 €
<ul> <li>NZDJPY</li> <li>CADJPY</li> <li>ZARJPY</li> <li>USDNOK</li> <li>USDZAR</li> </ul>	82,81 11,5150 5,5695	11,5590 5,5745		1989218 1989219 1989220	630240 630241	USDJPY		sell	0,3		Set Pending	2	Set Minimum F	Price			
<ul> <li>NZDJPY</li> <li>CADJPY</li> <li>ZARJPY</li> <li>USDNOK</li> </ul>	82,81 11,5150 5,5695 7,0012	11,5590 5,5745 7,0070	1	1989218 1989219 1989220	630240 630241 630242 630243	USDJPY USDJPY		sell sell	0,3 0,3			2	Set Minimum F	Price	D€	0,00€	-7,86 €
NZDJPY CADJPY ZARJPY USDNOK USDZAR GLD SLV	82,81 11,5150 5,5695 7,0012 0	11,5590 5,5745 7,0070 0	1	1989218 1989219 1989220 1989221	630240 630241 630242 630243	USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY		sell sell sell	0,3 0,3 0,3			2	Set Minimum F	Price	D€	0,00 € 0,00 €	-7,86 € -7,86 €
<ul> <li>NZDJPY</li> <li>CADJPY</li> <li>ZARJPY</li> <li>USDNOK</li> <li>USDZAR</li> <li>GLD</li> </ul>	82,81 11,5150 5,5695 7,0012 0 0	11,5590 5,5745 7,0070 0 0	1	1989218 1989219 1989220 1989221	630240 630241 630242 630243	USDJPY USDJPY USDJPY		sell sell sell	0,3 0,3 0,3			2	Set Minimum F		D€	0,00 € 0,00 €	-7,86 € -7,86 €

The master trades can be closed the same way. Double click on the master order to open Order Execution window and close the master order.

 $<sup>^{\</sup>rm 2}$  If broker enables closing of the sub orders with the MAM Client application



Sub orders cannot be closed partially. Master orders can be closed partially.

Trades can also be opened on the master account from the MAM Client application if broker permits this option. To open new trade on the master account from MAM Client application double click on the Symbol from the market watch window. The Order Execution window will be opened. Set all required parameters of the trade in the Order Execution window and press Buy/Sell button.

# **Sub Orders**

The sub orders tab is used to track all the sub orders. Sometimes there can be unallocated trades on the sub accounts (due to that the sub accounts were trading separately from the master account for example). This screen is showing all the trades on the sub accounts regardless of their allocation status. The sub orders table allows flexible visualization mechanism by means of columns grouping. Grouping can be made by any column. By default the grouping is made by master order. When expanding the grouped row the sub orders will be shown for particular master order.

<u>File</u> Langu	iage <u>A</u> bo	ut																		
symbol	bid	ask		Acc	ounts M	laster Order	s Sub Orde	rs Reports	Commissions											
EURUSD	1,4159	1,4160					_													
USDJPY	80,77	80,79		ma	aster on	der /														
USDCHF	0,8841	0,8844		ord	er	login	symbol	comment	command	volume	open time	open price	sl	tp	commissio	agent	swap	profit		
GBPUSD	1,6189	1,6192		⊳	master or	rder : 19891	.96 (Total: 5,	Volume: 1)								-				
AUDUSD	1,0562	1,0565						Volume: 0,5)												
USDCAD	0,9754	0,9757				630240	USD JPY	rolanci ojoj	sel	0,1	16.05.2011 23:42:25	80.76	0	0	0,00€	0 00 E	0,00€	-2,62€		
NZDUSD	0,7801	0,7804				1989204		USDJPY		sell	0,1	16.05.2011 23:42:25		0	0	0,00 €	0,00€	0,00 €	-2,62€	
GBPJPY	130,76	130,82				630242	USDJPY		sel	0,1	16.05.2011 23:42:25		0	0	0,00 €	0,00 €	0,00 €	-2,62 €		
GBPCHF	1,4313	1,4319					1989206		USDJPY		sel	0,1	16.05.2011 23:42:25		0	0	0,00 €		0,00 €	-2,62€
EURGBP	0,8744	0,8746								630244	USDJPY		sel	0,1	16.05.2011 23:42:25		0	0	0,00 €	
EURCHF	1,2522	1,2524						Volume: 0.5)		0,1	10:00:2011 20: 12:20	00,70			0,00 C	0,00 C	0,00 C	2,02 0		
EURJPY	114,37	114,40	E		master order : 1989208 (Total: 5, Volume: 0,5) master order : 1989214 (Total: 8, Volume: 2)															
EURTRY	2,2539	2,2559						volume: 2)			46.05.0044.00.40.00	00 TC			0.00.5	0.00.0	0.00.0	0.00.0		
USDTRY	1,5908	1,5928				630214	USDJPY		sell	0,1	16.05.2011 23:42:39		0	0	0,00€	0,00€		-2,62€		
TRYJPY	50,67	50,82				630233			sell	0,1	16.05.2011 23:42:39		0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-2,62€		
👍 EURAUD	1,3400	1,3408				630235	USDJPY		sell	0,1	16.05.2011 23:42:39		0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-2,62€		
AUDJPY	85,29	85,35			1989218		USDJPY		sel	0,6	16.05.2011 23:42:39		0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-15,73 (		
CHFJPY	91,30	91,38			1989219		USDJPY		sell	0,3	16.05.2011 23:42:39		0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-7,87€		
NZDCHF	0,6894	0,6906			1989220		USDJPY		sell	0,3	16.05.2011 23:42:39		0	0	0,00€		0,00€	-7,87€		
NZDJPY	62,99	63,07			1989221		USDJPY		sell	0,3	16.05.2011 23:42:39		0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-7,87€		
CADJPY	82,74	82,84				630244	USDJPY		sell	0,2	16.05.2011 23:42:39	80,76	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-5,24€		
ZARJPY	11,5080	11,5730		-			23 (Total: 5,													
USDNOK	5,5726	5,5776		Þ	master or	rder : 19892	29 (Total: 8,	Volume: 1,5)												
USDZAR	6,9917	7,0107																		
🗣 GLD	0	0																		
SLV	0	0																		
OIL	0	0																		
🗣 WTI	0	0	Ŧ	Т	tal: 36					6,5					0,00€	0,00	0,00€	-216,		

To export sub orders to excel select the sub orders and then right click on the sub orders table. Use Export Sub Orders option from the popup menu.

# Reports

This tab is showing the history of trades on the master account and its corresponding sub trades in a master-detail format. To request history report select *From* and *To* dates. Then press *Request* button.

	Langua	ige <u>A</u> bo	ut														
٩c	counts Ma	aster Orde	rs Sub O	rders Repor	ts Com	missions											
oro	ler	login	symbol	comment	com	mand	volume	open tim	open price	close time	close pric	ce sl	tp	соп	imi agen	t swap	profit
	1989123	630198		Deposit to		balance	0	16.05.201	. 0	16.05.2011	20:	0	0	0 0,0	0€ 0,00	€ 0,00	E 10 000,
	1989125	630198		Deposit to	sut	balance	0	16.05.201	. 0	16.05.2011	20:	0	0	0 0,0	0€ 0,00	€ 0,00	E 10 000,
1	1989126	630198				buy		16.05.201	80,78	16.05.2011	20:	80,76	0	0 0,0	0€ 0,00	€ 0,00	E -174,35
	order	login		comment c					n prio close		ose pric sl	tp	c	ommissi a	-	•	profit
	1989128		USDJPY		buy		16.05.2011		80,78 16.05.		80,76	0	0	0,00€	0,00€		-104,61€
	1989127	630240	USDJPY		buy	4	16.05.2011	20:0	80,78 16.05.	2011 20:3	80,76	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-69,74€
	2					10,00								0,00€	0,00	0,00	-174,
	1989129	630198	USDJPY			buy	10	16.05.201	80,78	16.05.2011	21:	80,76	0	0 0.0	0€ 0,00	€ 61.04	€ -174,17
	1989133	630198		Withdrawa	l fri	balance	0	16.05.201	0	16.05.2011	21:	0	0	0 0,0	0€ 0,00	€ 0,00	E -931,33
	1989135	630198		Withdrawa	l fri	balance	0	16.05.201	: 0	16.05.2011	21	0	0	0 0,0	0€ 0,00	€ 0,00	≣ -518,08
	1989137	630198		Withdrawa	l fri	balance	0	16.05.201	. 0	16.05.2011	21:	0	0	0 0,0	0€ 0,00	€ 0,00	E -5 000,0
	1989139	630198		Withdrawa	l fri	balance	0	16.05.201	. 0	16.05.2011	21:	0	0	0 0,0	0€ 0,00	€ 0,00	E -1 000,0
٥	1989141	630198	USDJPY	cancelled b	y d	buy	10	16.05.201	80,8	16.05.2011	22:	80,76	0	0 0,0	0€ 0,00	€ 0,00	E -348,68
	order	login	symbol	comment c	ommai	volume	open time	e ope	n prio close	time d	ose pric sl	tp	c	ommissi a	igent s	wap	profit
	1989143	630241	USDJPY		buy		16.05.2011		80,8 16.05.		80,76	0	0	0,00€	0,00€		-129,01€
	1989142	630240	USDJPY		buy	6,3	16.05.2011	21:3	80,8 16.05.	2011 22:0	80,76	0	0	0,00€	0,00€	0,00€	-219,67€
	2					10,00								0,00€	0,00	0,00	-348,
	1989144	630198	USDJPY	cancelled b	y d	buy	10	16.05.201	80,8	16.05.2011	22	80,76	0	0 0,0	0€ 0,00	€ 0,00	E -348,67
	1989151	630198		Deposit to	sut	balance	0	16.05.201	0	16.05.2011	22:	0	0	0 0,0	0€ 0,00	€ 0,00	E 1000,0
	1989153	630198		Withdrawa	l fri	balance	0	16.05.201	. 0	16.05.2011	22:	0	0	0 0,0	0€ 0,00	€ 0,00	E -564,16
	38						89,7							0,0	0,00	112	115

Expanding the master trade record will display the sub orders allocated for it (the sub orders are lit green).

Select any number of trades and right click on the table. This will bring the popup menu from which you may choose to Export to Excel or Export to HTML.

# Commissions

The 'Commissions' window allows to calculate different types of commissions. There are three types of Commissions available:

 Performance Fee – based on the High-Water Mark (HW) algorithm. The high-water mark ensures that the manager does not get paid large sums for poor performance. So if the manager loses money over a period, he or she must get the fund above the high watermark before receiving a performance bonus. For example, say after reaching its peak a fund loses \$100,000 in year one, and then makes \$250,000 in year two. The manager therefore not only reached the high-water mark but exceeded it by \$150,000 (\$250,000 - \$100,000), which is the amount on which the manager gets paid the bonus.  Management Fee - a charge levied by an investment manager for managing an investment fund. The management fee is intended to compensate the managers for their time and expertise. It can also include other items such as investor relations expenses and the administration costs of the fund.

Management fee structures are based on a percentage of assets under management. For example, a mutual fund's management fee could be stated as 0.5% of assets under management.

3. Flat Fee – a price per period, which remains constant regardless of the performance or amounts under management.

The first table of the Commissions tab is showing all the sub accounts and their parameters. The second table shows the history of trades on the selected sub account.

ile <u>L</u> angu	age <u>C</u> on	nmissions	He	lp										
/mbol	bid	ask	*	Accounts Mast	ter Orders	Sub Orders Report	Commissions							
EURUSD	1.38644	1.38645		login group		name	profit	high watermark	last charged	perf. fee	mgmt. fee	flat fee	total fee	
GBPUSD	1.66300	1.66308		iogini group	B-2-20	CONTRACTOR OF THE R. L.	\$0.02	\$0.00	31.01.2014	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$10.00	\$10.00	ľ
USDCHF	0.87833	0.87835		second land		Industry a lists	\$3 681.44	\$17 953.35	31.01.2014	\$368.14	\$28.65	\$10.00	\$406.79	
USDJPY	103.315	103.317		second law of		Public Sheet	\$2 261.45	\$11 818.88	31.01.2014	\$226.15	\$18.92	\$10.00	\$255.07	
AUDUSD	0.90408	0.90414		section in such that		Partners Mar	\$3 209.49	\$13 652.63	31.01.2014	\$320.95	\$21.53	\$10.00	\$352.48	
EURGBP	0.83366	0.83371		second lawy		HARDING CANTURNESS	\$0.00	\$0.00	0110112011	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$10.00	\$10.00	
USDCAD	1.10814	1.10820		strength in such		Patient days	\$2 389.86	\$12 096.70	31.01.2014	\$238.99	\$19.33	\$10.00	\$268.31	
NZDUSD	0.84945	0.84956		second law of		Annal Lawrence	\$2 679.12	\$12 077.50	31.01.2014	\$267.91	\$19.15	\$10.00	\$297.06	
EURCHF	1.21773	1.21775		statute house		Radiate Country	\$2 665.15	\$12 091.03	31.01.2014	\$266.51	\$19.18	\$10.00	\$295.69	
EURJPY	143.239	143.244		station house		Marchiter.	\$4 172.40	\$21 833.46	31.01.2014	\$417.24	\$31.77	\$10.00	\$459.01	
GBPJPY	171.817	171.825	-	strength laund		Marin Institution	\$1 884.52	\$11074.76	31.01.2014	\$188.45	\$17.75	\$10.00	\$216.20	
GBPCHF	1.46066	1.46076	-	second law of		Name Person Public Person	\$1 928.64	\$10 013.94	31.01.2014	\$192.86	\$15.66	\$10.00	\$218.53	
EURAUD	1.53328	1.53367		states in such		Mar in States No.	\$1 792.95	\$10 708.26	31.01.2014	\$179.29	\$15.99	\$10.00	\$205.29	
EURCAD	1.53630	1.53660												
GBPCAD	1.84282	1.84316		41			\$74 570.67			\$7 457.07	\$890.69	\$410.0	\$8 757.	
GBPAUD	1.83920	1.83957												_
CHFJPY	117.612	117.641		time		balance	deposit	credit	profit closed	profit	equity	margin		
CADJPY	93.215	93.246		2/28/2014 11:59	9:59 PM	19361.72	0	0	-0.52	-301.09	19060.63	525.4286		
CADCHF	0.79243			2/27/2014 11:59	9:59 PM	19362.24	0	0	0	-75.84	19286.4	198.6245		
AUDJPY	93.396	93.426		2/26/2014 11:59	9:59 PM	19362.24	0	0	39.6	-35.98	19326.26	102.8036		
AUDCAD		1.00210		2/25/2014 11:59	9:59 PM	19322.64	0	0	19.7	-32.46	19290.18	129.904		
USDDKK	5.38219			2/24/2014 11:59	9:59 PM	19302.94	0	0	94.33	-7.16	19295.78	129.904		
AUDCHF	0.79397			2/21/2014 11:59	9:59 PM	19208.61	0	0	13.27	-123.98	19084.63	315.7228		
AUDNZD	1.06418	1.06454		2/20/2014 11:59	9:59 PM	19195.34	0	0	16.72	-24.04	19171.3	233.1888		
EURNZD		1.63229		2/19/2014 11:59	9:59 PM	19178.62	0	0	89.28	-30.18	19148.44	161.311		
GBPNZD		1.95792		2/18/2014 11:59	9:59 PM	19089.34	-1288.1091	0	21.38	-39.27	19050.07	225.2761		
NZDCAD	0.94114			2/17/2014 11:59	9:59 PM	19465.42	0	0	18.26	-12.57	19452.85	83.2402		
NZDCHF		0.74645		2/14/2014 11:59	9:59 PM	19447.16	-890.6481	0	100.35	-13.68	19433.48	96.7691		
NZDJPY	87.743	87.787		2/13/2014 11:59	9:59 PM	20237.46	0	0	53.62	-139.67	20097.79	281.0387		
USDSGD		1.26690		2/12/2014 11:59	9:59 PM	20183.84	0	0	11.39	-60.28	20123.56	103.5402		
USDNOK		5.94711					-	-	10.00	25.45	20005-00	117 0505		
USDSEK		6.36725		169		\$3 343 316.49	\$13 626.30	\$0.00	\$4 844.77	-\$129 345.				
AUDSGD	1.14500	1.14551		I	Trade Hist	aru								
CHFSGD		1.44252		Equity Report Settings	Traue hisu	bry								
		7.46281		Securitys										
EURDKK	10.76080	10.76175		Interva	al: Month	-	Flat	Fee: 10 🛟						
EURDKK EURHKD	0.0445-	8.24531					1 Idic	•						
EURDKK EURHKD EURNOK	8.24407				01.02.2	2014 🔻 p	erformance Fee (	HW): 10 🗘 🤅	%					
EURDKK EURHKD EURNOK EURSEK	8.82614	8.82742		Period for	r: 01.02.2	р т	criterinance i ee p							
EURDKK EURHKD EURNOK EURSEK EURSGD	8.82614 1.75602	8.82742 1.75653		Period for										
EURDKK EURHKD EURNOK EURSEK	8.82614 1.75602 8.95073	8.82742 1.75653		Period for	Get Hist		Management		%					

It is required to pass though some steps to get correct commissions calculation.

- 1. Select **Interval**. It can be Week, Month, Quarter or Year. This parameter defines the period of calculation, for example, if you set Interval as Month then the commissions will be calculated based on the monthly periods.
- 2. Select **Period For**. This is the starting date from which the commission is calculated. For example, if Interval is set to Month and Period For is set to 01.01.2014 then the commission will be calculated for January 2014.

- 3. Set **Flat Fee** (in currency units), **Performance Fee** (as a % of profit) and **Management Fee** (as a % of Equity).
- 4. Click on the top table and select the sub accounts to calculate the commission for. Press Ctrl+A to select all the sub accounts.
- 5. Press **Get History** button. The trading history and Equity Reports will be retrieved from the server. It takes some time. The progress will be shown in the bottom.
- 6. The results will be shown in the top table. The **Profit** column will show the profit gained by the sub account within the given period. The **High Watermark** will show the Highest Equity of the sub account. This parameter can be modified manually, but if it is empty then the High Watermark will be calculated automatically based on the total history of the sub account. Once the High Watermark is calculated for the first time it is required to recalculate the fees based on this High Watermark again so that to get correct Performance Fee for the given period.
- 7. The results can be exported to Excel. Use Commissions menu to export the results.
- 8. Also it is possible to save current settings so that to make it easier to calculate them for the future periods. Use Commissions->Save Settings menu to save current settings.
- 9. The commissions are withdrawn by the broker. Your broker will have the same module for commissions calculation but they have ability to withdraw the commissions as well. The Commissions module of the MAM Client application is used just for information purposes.